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Planning Services
East Devon District Council
Council Offices
Knowle
Sidmouth
EX10 8HL 

[bookmark: _GoBack]20 September 2013 
 
Dear Sirs 
Farm manager's dwelling (outline application) Pitt Farm, Coombelake, Ottery St Mary 
Thank you for consulting the Garden History Society on the above application which affects Cadhay, an historic designed landscape of National importance included by English Heritage on the Register of Parks and Gardens of Special Historic Interest at Grade II. There are only 53 Registered sites in Devon and only 8 in East Devon on this highly selective list. 
The Devon Gardens Trust, formed in 1987, has considerable knowledge, expertise and experience of developments affecting historic designed landscapes. One of its roles is to help safeguard the heritage of historic landscapes within the County of Devon by advising local planning authorities on statutory and non-statutory parks, gardens and designed landscapes of importance.    
We have visited Cadhay and have studied the planning application documents on your web site. We would ask you consider the following comments:  
The National Planning Policy Framework states a presumption in favour of sustainable development in both plan making and decision making, but recognises that there is a need to balance any adverse impacts against the benefits. The NPPF sets out 12 core planning principles that should underpin both plan making and decision making. 
Principle 10 states that planning should “conserve heritage assets in a manner appropriate to their significance so that they can be enjoyed for their contribution to the quality of life of this and future generations.” 
NPPF para 126 states that ‘heritage assets are an irreplaceable resource …. and conserve them in a manner appropriate to their significance.’  It reiterates the previous advice of PPS5 that LPAs, in determining applications, should require the applicant to describe the significance of any heritage assets affected, including any contribution made by their setting.  We consider that the Design and Access Statement does not describe the full significance of Cadhay or the impact of the proposal on the setting of Cadhay.  It is evident that the applicant has little understanding of the historic landscape of Cadhay and the harm that such a proposal would have on this heritage asset. 
Cadhay is an important historic country house, listed Grade I, in a mature historic designed landscape.  Cadhay House is a two and three storey mansion dating from the mid C16 with early C18 additions and C18 & C20 alterations.  The house was described by the Rev John Swete in 1793 as ‘an Ediface of no common note’ and commented on  the grove which surrounded it, which he considered  ‘coequal with the mansion’.  The gardens were largely created in the 1920’s and 30s within the framework of old walls and incorporating the medieval fishponds.  The c 1.0ha of formal and informal gardens, c 0.75ha kitchen garden and c 6.25ha of ornamental paddock conform to the pattern shown on the 1809 first edition OS Map and the mid C19 Tithe map. 
We are concerned that the present scheme appears to have been brought forward without due regard to its potential impact on the historic designed landscape which adjoins the application site. The proposed farm manager's dwelling would be situated on the northern skyline of Cadhay and would be visually intrusive when viewed from the approach drive to Cadhay and across the open parkland. The Devon Gardens Trust works in partnership with The Garden History Society in responding to consultations and advises that development which adversely impacts upon the historic environment should not be permitted.  In our opinion, the proposed farm manager's dwelling would be seriously detrimental to the character and appearance of the heritage assets of the Grade I listed building and Grade II Registered park and garden. 
In conclusion, we are concerned about the adverse visual impact of the proposed development which would cause substantial harm to the significance of Cadhay and its setting.  We recommend that your authority should refuse consent for this proposal as it clearly conflicts with national planning policy with regard to the conservation of the historic environment. 
 Yours faithfully
John Clark, Dipl TP (Dist), Conservation Officer
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